APPROVED / REVISED
MINUTES
INLAND WETLANDS BOARD MEETING

October 23, 2007 Present: Michael Autuori
Joseph Fossi
Nelson Gelfman
John Katz, Vice Chair
James McChesney
Rebecca Mucchetti, Chairman
Patrick Walsh
Lillian Willis

Absent: Walter Slavin

Also Present: Betty Brosius, Inland Wetlands Agent
Linda Caponetti, Recording Secretary

At 7:32 p.m. Chairman Mucchetti called the meetmgrder.
PENDING ITEMS

1. #2007-114-SRSummary Ruling application to excavate and gradangpreview
area and wetlands in conjunction with replacingldpei with new expanded bridge on
property located @45 Ridgebury Road(aka Dlhy Court) in the RAAA zone.
Owner: Town of Ridgefield. Appl.: Edward Tyrre@i5-day action period ends
12/13/2007. Received 10/9/2007. Walked 10/14/2007. Draft Resolution of Approval
requested 10/16/2007.For action.

Dr. Gelfman commented that the environmental report from S&&rWheler
Environmental Engineers and Scientists was exaegitypgood. The Board agreed.

Mr. McChesney motioned, seconded by Mr. Walsh, to approve teelution as
drafted by staff. The motion passed, 8-0.

2. #2007-118-SRSummary Ruling application for activities withimet upland review
area in conjunction with new single family residemonstruction on 1.247+ acres of
land located at15 Golf Lane.Owner/Appl.: Bruce Meier. Auth. Agent: Frank G.
Fowler Ill, PE, LS 65-day action period ends 12/13/2007. Received 10/9/2007.

Walked 10/14/2007. Draft Resolution of Approval requested 10/16/2007.For action.

Mr. McChesney motioned, seconded by Mr. Walsh, to approve teelution as
drafted by staff. The motion passed, 7-0-1. Mvdlis abstained because she had
not walked the site.



NEW ITEMS

3. #2007-129-SP-SRSummary Ruling application for discharge into @rgtstream
channel on property located38 Saw Mill Hill Road in the RAA zone in
conjunction with Special Permit for driveway rectvastion. Owner: Robert
Rosseau. Appl./Auth. Agent: Frank Fowler, Ill, RE, 65-day action period ends
12/27/2007. Eor receipt and schedule walk.

Mrs. Willis motioned, seconded by Mr. Fossi, to acknowledgeipe of the
application and to schedule a site walk for 10/Z84% suggested by the Chairman.
The motion passed, 8-0.

BOARD WALKS

The Commission added the following to the site walkedule for October 28, 2007:

= #2007-129-SP-SRSpecial Permi86 Saw Mill Hill, Rosseau

Previously scheduled for October 28, 2007:

= #2007-121-SPA-SRSummary Ruling/6 Governor Street 76 Governor Street LLC

REQUESTS FOR BOND RELEASES/REDUCTION
There were no requests for bond release or reductio

CORRESPONDENCE

Chairman Mucchetti pointed out the following correspondence:

« Order of the Inland Wetlands Board re 80 SpringasaRoad wetlands violation.
« Order of the Inland Wetlands Board re 90 Spring&aRoad wetlands violation
MINUTES

Mrs. Willis motioned, seconded by Mr. Fossi, to approve thutas of October 9,
2007. The motion passed, 8-0.

Hearing no further discussion, the Chairman adjediihe meeting at 7:36 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Linda Caponetti
Recording Secretary



APPROVED / REVISED
MINUTES
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING

October 23, 2007 Present: Michael Autuori
Joseph Fossi
Nelson Gelfman
John Katz, Vice Chair
James McChesney
Rebecca Mucchetti, Chairman
Patrick Walsh
Lillian Willis

Absent: Walter Slavin

Also Present: Betty Brosius, Director of Planning
Linda Caponetti, Recording Secretary

At 7:37 p.m., Chairman Mucchetti called the meetmgrder.
PENDING ITEMS

1. #2007-042-REZ-A[Submitted prior to 5/1/2007, adoption of new zwnregulations]
(1) Petition to amend the text of the zoning reggafes of the Town of Ridgefield to
revise certain sections of the Housing Opportubistrict (HOD) regulations, to
permit residential development under Sec. 8-30®{Connecticut General Statutes,
and related amendment to the Comprehensive Townald (2) petition to change
the zoning map of the Town of Ridgefield from CD®OHOD and related amendment
to the Comprehensive Town Plan, for 153+ acresmd located &16 Bennett's
Farm Road. Owner: Eureka V, LLC. Appl./Auth. Agent: J. Caddgaly, Esq.
Received 5/1/2007. Public hearing commenced 7/10/2007,continued to 9/4/2007and
continued to 9/18/2007. (5 daysto set public hearing plus 21 days to continue public
hearing to 9/4/2007 plus 14 days to continue public hearing to 9/18/2007 =40 days of
65 day extension used). Public hearing closed 9/18/2007. Discussion held
9/25/2007.10/2/2007 next discussion date set for 10/9/2007. Draft overlay regulations
requested from Planner 10/9/2007. 65- day action period ends 11/22/2007. PD
update re draft overlay regulations 10/16/2007. For discussion.

Chairman Mucchetti noted the draft regulation (at the table) prepéne@lanner
Brosius, and asked the Planner to discuss it.

The Plannerexplained the format she used to differentiatevben the old language

of the regulation, the proposed language of théiegp, and the new, substituted or

added language in the draft. In addition, each nf@goagraph is accompanied by the
reasons arrived at by the Commission for the meatitbns, she said.



The Planner stated two reasons for her preference for leathaglerrar numbers in
the regulation: 1) this regulation, as proposedhieyapplicant, is the Terrar
regulation, only modified to add the Bennett's Fammoperty; and 2) this includes the
setbacks, density, etc., permitted on the lottHerrecord.

Mr. McChesney asked if it is the intention of the Commissionédwise the current
regulations to reflect the addition of the new H@gulations.

The Planner,acknowledging that this was submitted before #& regulations were
adopted, said she had consulted with counsel trméte how to handle this
technicality. She was unsure as to whether orowatark with exactly what had been
submitted by the applicant, i.e., the old regulaiand the old numbers, or just adapt
this to the new regulations. Counsel’'s recommendatias to put in the new
numbers, acknowledging that this will be part & tiew regulations, if it is adopted.

Mr. McChesney asked if these changes would require a SpeciahiPer a public
hearing.

The Plannersaid that it would not; the Commission is only nfigidg what was
already submitted, she said. Mr. McChesney wasustillear. The Planner explained
that, since the old regulations don’t exist anymére Commission is putting this in
now, which means it will be part of the new regulas, if it is adopted. Mr.
McChesney said that this was written around theedailation. The Planner clarified,
saying that the Commission is not creating a neulegion; it is working with the
original application, modified by the applicantadd Bennett's Farm. Now, the
Commission is taking that, (the 509 units of affdst® housing), and further
modifying it. Mr. McChesney asked if it would bensadered an addendum to the old
regulations.

Mr. Katz said that it substitutes for the old regulation.

The Planner said that was correct. She said the Commissiondiah this out of the
regulations and is now, in effect, putting it bacto the regulations. She further
suggested that, if and when the Commission pussiibd the new regulations, they
put it under the heading “Other Housing Zones arddJ as a fourth category,
entitled “Housing Opportunity Development.”

Mr. McChesney said that the paragraph numbering for this isgitiie old

regulation numbering system. The Planner explaihatishe would adapt it to the
new numbering. Mr. McChesney asked if this wouldlpnly to Bennett’s Farm or
would it also include the Terrar property. The Rkansaid that her opinion is that the
Terrar property should be left in, because, i§ temoved, the Commission would
then have to justify why.

Mr. Katz asked the Planner what exactly the Commissionb&asy asked to do.



The Planner said that it was to examine the draft modificatéom determine

whether or not it accurately reflects the Commis'siavishes and intent. The only
thing that has been left blank is the density nunndiee said. That is a discussion that
needs to continue, she felt, because no partioulaber had been arrived at. Mr.
Katz asked if that would be “Part 2.” of the dissios. The Planner said that it would.

Chairman Mucchetti suggested that the Commission take the document an
examine the sections, one by one. She added gn&l&mner’s addition of “Reasons”
for the modifications in each section was partidylaelpful.

Section A. Intent and Purpose.

Mr. Katz felt that #5 was redundant and should be del@ted.Commission agreed.

Mr. Walsh wondered if “EXISTING OR EXPANDED INFRASTRUCTUREMND
UTILITIES” needed to specify by whom and when, bosld the wording be simply,
“EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE...”? If permits were securég agencies the
Commission has no control over, he said, then Wmyld be existing.

There was some discussion as to whether or natding EXPANDED was needed.

The Plannerexplained that the reason the word is in the disafecause the existing
sewage treatment facility would have to be expandedder to serve this proposed
development.

Mr. Walsh said the Commission has no control over expanttiedacility. If it is to
be expanded, the applicants will have to get apgsoivom a different agency. When
that happens, would it not then be considered EXN&T he asked.

The Planner said that it would be at the time of the final iqgtion for building
permits, but that it might not be at the time whtegy apply to Planning and Zoning.
The reason for leaving the work EXPANDED in, shigl s&s because the applicant
has a right to ask the Water Pollution Control Auity (WPCA) for approval to
expand the existing facility to accommodate theettgwment, and the WPCA has
already said they would consider expansion of tbet®7 plant.

Mr. Katz said he thought Mr. Walsh'’s concern could be asiré by the following
wording: “efficiently utilized approved infrastruge and utilities.” That wording
indicates that an agency would have to approvesisaid, and the Commission
would not be that agency.

Dr. Gelfman thought the wording should be left as is. The €han agreed.
Mr. McChesney said he thought Mr. Katz was going beyond theninéand purpose

into areas that were more than informative. He sdidhe wording should be left as
is. Dr. Autuori agreed. But, he said the poterfbalexpansion did not necessarily



have to apply only to this applicant. There’s mimréghe EXPANDED wording than
just this application, he said.

It was decided to leave the wording as suggestatiélanner.

The Chairman questioned the use of the word “certain” with relga applications.
The Planner explained that the Commission may pplyahis to all 8-30g
applications.

Mr. Katz suggested different wording for #4: EXISTING OREXNDED
INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES WHICH ARE NOT IN PRONONCED
CONFLICT WITH DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PRINCIPLES. Hea#l that, if the
consensus of the Commission is that there shoufthetrusion into the watershed
area, it ought to made clear initially under thet®a for Intent and Purpose. He
added that it would be a letter from the Departneérdealth which would support
the suggestions for density in the watershed airateby the Commission.

The Chairman suggested making this a separate item, as opposedending #4.

There was some discussion around Mr. Katz’ suggesiind this topic in general.
The Chairman felt that the wording was too cumbmeso Dr. Gelfman said he
understood what Mr. Katz was aiming at, but herditifeel that this was the place to
do it. Mrs. Willis disagreed, saying that puttindnére helps to explain why

the applicant can only go so far. Dr. Autuori agtevith Mrs. Willis. The Chairman
suggested a vote. Mr. Walsh suggested some akenmating, and felt that this
needed to be added as a separate paragraph, gegfini¢s the INTENT here that any
development not be inconsistent with Departmerdedlth principles.

Mr. Katz said that the DPH [State Department of Public théalidn't refer to just
“any development.” It was specifically referringdensity in the watershed area. That
was the only issue that concerned the DPH, he Baid/alsh suggested inserting a
paragraph which says just that.

Dr. Gelfman added an additional suggestion: Efficiently uglZXISTING OR
EXPANDED “COMMUNITY” INFRASTRUCTURE...”

The Plannersuggested the word MUNICIPAL. Dr Gelfman counteisaying that
the Commission does not want the applicant to wssbDry facilities. The Planner
suggested using the term RIDGEFIELD MUNICIPAL INFRARUCTURE, etc.

The Plannersaid that it may not be necessary to labor ovemtbrding of the
regulation, since some of the concerns and dismussound specific topics could be
covered under the “Reasons” section. For, exanipgeCommission could expand on
the issue of the DPH letter under “reasons,” byrgathat it is one of the reasons
why the Commission is modifying, i.e., EXISTING BXPANDED RIDGEFIELD
MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES. Everythingloes not need to



be covered in the regulation itself, she said,na#ds to be covered in the
Commission’s discussion. In developing this redordhis application, which may
potentially be reviewed in court, she said, thercawould look at 1) how the
Commission made its decision, 2) how it made itgliffcations, 2) what justifies the
modifications that it made.

Dr. Autuori felt there was no harm in putting a few “key wdrnfgo the regulation
which would highlight the need for consistency watiloper principles and practices
of the DPH, or sound practices of public health safety.

The Chairman asked if that wouldn’t be redundant, in that ratjohs are
automatically in conformance with state regulations

The Planner said that it may be somewhat redundant. The Cosiom's
modifications are being made to insure that thisudeent that is in general
conformance with the Plan of Conservation and Dyuakent and is also in
conformance with the state POCD. She felt it wgsartant not to belabor every
word, as this could result in the regulation becania forty page document.”

Mr. Katz said he takes issue with the assertion that reégokaare in conformity

with the precepts of the DPH. If that were the cagesaid, 8-30g wouldn’t be what it
is. He stated that it has “bulldozed” throughtlaé recommendations of the
Connecticut POCD [Plan of Conservation and Develapinand all the regulations
of all the towns in which it has been applied. Hi $trongly that the Commission
should enlist the support of the DPH because tlagg fritten a letter conclusively
stating that the density proposed in the waterstikchave negative effects. This is a
first, he said.

Dr. Gelfman felt that the Commission should keep the regutesionple, adding that
there is a whole record that has been establistredgh the public hearing, and “we
don’t want to duplicate that.” He felt #4 shouldna&n as is.

Mrs. Willis said that, throughout the Intent and Purpose@®gdinere is nothing
which speaks to the issue of safeguarding wategplmgoand other natural resources,
which, she noted, took up the majority of the dsston. Mr. Katz agreed.

The Plannerexplained, saying the INTENT AND PURPOSE of tlagulation is to
create a document which accommodates an affordhaboising development. The
water issues absolutely need to be addressedaghdat, later, during the site plan
stage of the development. Dr. Gelfman agreed.

Mr. Katz said that it is important to refine this so tHa Commission doesn’t only
create a regulation to accommodate affordable hgubut one which accommodates
affordable housing under the aegis of the 8-30mi&awhich is much more onerous
than the town’s regulations, he said.



There was disagreement among the commissioneosvasether or not the regulation
should state, in the INTENT AND PURPOSE sectior,ribed for conformance with
DPH and POCD guidelines, or if this should be asised later on. Specific wording
was also discussed.

The Chairman asked for specific wording. She asked for a motimging the
Commission to move on from the first section.

Dr. Gelfman made a motion to leave the wording as it is. Mal$i seconded the
motion. The motion passed, 5-3.

Section B. Eligible Parcels.

Mr. Walsh suggested that the property at 616 Bennett's Faat be presented in
acres, as well. It was determined that the Plagheuld give the acreage, in addition
to the other information.

Section C. Permitted Uses.

Mr. Katz wanted the word regulation changed to provisidre Planner agreed to
make the change. The Chairman stressed that ciopéiion is that, no matter
what it's being called, it is still a regulation.

Mrs. Willis thought that 25 units per structure was too miitie. Planner said that
number reflects the Terrar application. Terrar Yeased upon the Town, Mrs. Willis
said, repeating her desire to see a lower density.

Mr. Katz noted that the Commission is not dealing with actd Permit, so is not
able to control all details, down to the last unit.

Mr. McChesney said he did not recall any discussion in the réednere the
Commission asked the applicant if they would acsépictures of less than 25 units,
and he is concerned about introducing a provisiahe regulation that was not part
of the public record. Mr. Katz agreed.

Dr. Autuori’'s concern was that, if the Commission asked for fodemsity
structures, then that would result in more landecage. He wanted to maximize open
space by squeezing the density into a smaller MealValsh was in agreement.

Mr. Walsh thinks that many things will come up in the comimgeks that were not
talked about in the public hearings. The Commissi@b is to make reasonable
changes to the regulation, he said, and those dibie limited by what was or was
not discussed in the public hearings, he felt.

Mr. Katz said that it seems that 180 of the proposed an&$n the watershed area,
and, of those, 56 are on slopes of 20% or greldefelt that, in order to achieve any



kind of density that would be acceptable under §;3@ese will have to be fairly
large clusters. Hence, he would opt for leavingdtadt as written, with 25 units per
structure.

Section D. Definitions.

The Chairman read the definitions. On #3, the word “PROTECTBEAZAs suggested
in place of the word “PRESERVED.” Mr. Katz suggesadditional rewording,
which the Planner objected to. He then suggestestisuting “SHOULD BE
PROTECTED FROM CONSTRUCTION OR SIGNIFICANT DISTURBKCE” in
place of “SHOULD BE PRESERVED.”

Dr. Autuori said that he wants to make sure that this langdagen’t imply that this
land doesn’t count toward the total area. He wasrasl that this is not what this
says.

Section E. Lot Density.

Mr. Katz asked why it was necessary to have the regulaagnmO THE EXTENT
PERMITTED UNDER 8-30g.

The Plannerreplied that counsel supported the proposal te $tés at several places
throughout the regulation. She said that it télesapplicant that, while the
Commission would like to have certain criteria uphé knows that it is limited by
8-30g in how it can apply that criteria. It remirtdle Commission that it must apply
the balancing test when adding conditions.

Mr. Katz did not agree that this wording was necessargnand the Commission of
the impact of 8-30g. He and the Planner debatadottefly.

Dr. Autuori did not like the use of the word PERMITTED.

The Plannerexplained that anything the Commission would decidder 8-30g is
only as permitted (or authorized) by that regulatio

The Chairman asked the Planner if she left the number of dwegliinits per acre
blank in #2 because she felt it could be addrelsgedin the discussion.

The Planner said that this was her thinking. She referred@benmission to the

maps provided by the applicant, including a wattedsmap, and also the steep slopes
map provided at the public hearing by Scott SharlBhe felt the Commission

needed to review these maps before arriving approgriate density. She noted that
the density discussion might be a lengthy one,salggiested the Commission come
back to it at the end of the discussion.



Section F. Bedrooms.

Regarding #2, Mrs. Willis said that she thought 38Rhe units containing three
bedrooms is too much. The Chairman asked how th#au30% was arrived at.The
Planner’s recollection was that it was suggesteMhyKatz. Dr. Autuori suggested
20% as preferable.

The Plannersaid that she has learned from her experiencdtenaer that there is a
real need for three bedroom units, especially fordéble housing. However, she told
the Commission, you don’'t want to create too mémnge bedroom units, because the
development then loses the diversity aspect, byeiig attractive to seniors or
singles. While developers may want to have the mari number of three bedroom
homes, (because they sell for more money), thisgfdhe regulation tells developers
that three bedrooms is the largest number you wacnsider, and only a certain
percentage of the homes can have three bedrooms.

Mrs. Willis asked about mentioning numbers for studios, odedoen units, or two
bedroom units.

Again the Planner cautioned the Commission to timnjeneral terms. She said it
was important to remember that this regulationgmesa limitation, not an invitation
to the developer. To a certain extent, she sagditarket will determine how many
units are built and sold.

Mr. McChesney said the sewer authority grants units on the hEdi®drooms That
may be the limiting factor, he said.

Mr. Katz said that this is not how the sewer authoritycates its allotment to a
project like this. It would be allocated by gallansthe site, and the developers can
distribute it any way they like.

Mr. McChesney cited the Toll Bros. development, stating thatehis indeed a
relationship between the number of bedrooms aidnadint.

Mr. Walsh asked if there was any information in the rectuat tould be used to
calculate the percentage.

The Plannersuggested the Commission look at what the apylitas suggested in
their own proposal.

The Chairman asked what the actual numbers of units would 9% and 30%.

Mr. Katz and Mr. McChesney provided the numbersgcivivere 58 and 87
respectively.

10



The Plannerlooked up the applicants numbers, based on theib@®. They were as
follows: 120 one bedroom apartments, 132 two bedrapartments, and 257 three
bedroom townhouses.

Discussion continued. The Commission decideddorjporate into #1 the wording
...SHALL HAVE A MIX OF ONE, TWO AND THREE BEDROOMS, sasuggested
by Mrs. Willis. [Note: There was more discussanthe “Bedrooms” section later,
reflected in the minutes.]

Section G. Lot Coverage.

This section was approved as presented.

Section H. Impervious Coverage.

Dr. Autuori asked what the maximum coverage is in the CDD .Zbhe Planner
said that it is 20%.

Mr. Fossi said that, if there is to be no building in thetevahed, there is no way a
developer can even approach 25% impervious.

The Commission discussed changing the imperviousrage limitation for the
Bennetts Farm property from 25% to 20%r. Katz motioned, seconded by Dr.
Autuori, to change the coverage to 20%. The mqtassed, 6-2, with Mr. Fossi and
Mr. Walsh voting against.

Mr. Katz asked if the Commission thought they could defiadl number in the
balancing test.

The Planner said this was consistent with the CDD, and thatapplicant’s original
percentage would have to be decreased if thereéonzes no building in the watershed
area.

Section |. Setbacks.

The Chairman noted that #'s 1, 2 and 3 had been stricken, @atlla showing the
setback numbers was substituted.

Dr Autuori said that he is more concerned with preservingtieetscape of the
public street and less concerned with the strepésidernally. He proposed the
public street setback be 100’ as opposed to 50’ MiChesney asked if there was
any public street frontage.

The Plannerexplained how the setbacks for each of the prigseirt each of the

separate categories originated. The only new additare the side and rear setbacks,
she said. Everything else was taken out of tharaigegulation. The numbers for

11



619 Danbury Road are consistent with the B-2 zach is what's being built right
now. The Bennett’'s Farm front setback numbers \weveided by the applicant. The
side and rear setbacks of 100’ were set in confocmavith the CDD zone.

Dr. Autuori asked what the CDD setback from a public roa@he Planner said it is
50’, but then found that it was, in fact, 100’. Bwtuori asked that the front setback
from a public street be changed from 50’ to 10(ijak is found in the concept plan
anyway, he said.

Dr. Gelfman said that he is concerned with restricting buiddalong Bennett’'s Farm
Rd. The Chairman asked if that is because it &ixaly level. He said that was
correct. Greater setbacks would push the developbeek, toward steeper and more
sensitive lands.

The Chairman said that the Commission has cut building in thadgatuck
watershed and on steep slopes. It has cut badkecainhount of impervious coverage
the developer can have, and now they are lookimgctease setbacks. She does not
want to be unreasonably restrictive.

Mr. McChesney said that he would leave the regulation the wasy, it50’). When
you exclude the watershed and look at the area®pem to Bennett's Farm Rd., he
said, there really isn’t much opportunity to buihdich of anything in there.

Dr. Autuori wanted to follow “the beneficial provisions of t&®D zone, where
possible.” He made a motion to increase the fretiiegck to 100’. There were no
seconds.

Mrs. Willis suggested referencing the underlying zone thapaineels are in, as well
as the surrounding zone under “reasons” justifyirggproposed changes.

The Chairman thought the Reasons wouldn’t go forward as pathefregulation.
The Planner said that they definitely will go fordanot as part of the regulation, but
as part of the record. With that clarification, tBkeairman wished to make a minor
wording change to the third bulleted item underd®ea in Section F (Bedrooms).

Section J. Building Height; Separation; Hallwaysility Connections.

The Chairman noted #'s 1 and 2 were approved as presented. Biutimtee was
amended to decrease the minimum distance betweleliinigs from 50’ to 30'.

Mr. Katz said the Commission might want to consider a sejuar of structures of
less than the 30’ recommended by the Planner. &teske believes that is the
minimum distance recommended by the Fire Department

The Chairman noted the change from thirty to twdivy for the number of dwelling
units each hallway is permitted to serve, (#4).

12



Number 5 was approved as presented.

Section K. Off-street Parking.
The Chairman noted #'s 1 and 2 were left as presented.

On #2, the applicant added A. detailing the nunabeipaces allocated for efficiency
units and one bedroom dwelling units, the Planagt.s

Mrs. Willis then said that the category EFFICIENCEY shoulihbkided in section
F., (Bedrooms), where the Commission had addedtinds SHALL HAVE A MIX
OF ONE, TWO AND THREE BEDROOMS. The Commission agre

The Chairman continued, saying that #'s 3, 4, anehfained, as presented, with the
Commission’s additional wording added as #6: ADMMNAL PARKING SHALL

BE PROVIDED FOR VISITORS IN CONVENIENT LOCATIONS
THROUGHOUT THE SITE.

Mr. Katz said that CONVENIENT is an arbitrary terkhe suggested eliminating the
words “in convenient locations.” The Commissiomesgl.

The Plannerreminded the Commission that, when they createmgrthey are
creating impervious surfaces. The Commission mayt wawait to determine the
number later. Mr. McChesney agreed, saying thaag “site dependent.” That is
true, the Planner said.

Dr. Autuori reiterated his desire for underground parkingciviiie said would
decrease impervious coverage on the site. Thisemiweas discussed.

This Section was approved, as presented, withrttendment to #6 suggested by Mr.
Katz.

Section L. Screening; Landscaping

There were no changes to this section.

Section M. Utilities.

The Chairman read the amended wording in this section.

Dr. Autuori commented that #1 in this section, NO SEWER LINBASL BE
EXTENDED INTO OR SHALL CROSS THROUGH THE SAUGATUCRUBLIC
WATER SUPPLY WATERSHED, is what is going to prectudevelopment in the
watershed, and it is totally justified in the retdne said.

13



Mr. Katz said that the most important reason is not inaudehis section, and that
is the warning from the Department of Health. Wherput that information was
discussed. It was decided to include mention o letter in the Reasons
section, along with “Evidence is in the record..Mr. Katz said that the letter was
not the only reference; there were letters from a@apn, backed up by the Norwalk
River group and the Conservation Commission. “Ewvidein the record is
voluminous,” he said. Whether or not it will be safered remains to be seen.

The Chairman said that the information Mr. Katz wished to incorgte exists in
Section E. under Reasons. It can be entered irg&@#ttion as well.

Section N. Age RestrictionflNew Section Added. Other paragraphs changed
accordingly, in sequence.]

The Chairman read the draft regulation. She asked the Plartyartahe percentages
given, and the Planner explained in detail. Shegumhsut chart which gives two
examples of the calculations used to meet the redjyiercentages for age restricted
affordable housing, one based on 100 units tota the other the other for 280 units
total.

The Plannerused the example of 100 units, saying that, ta theefederal
regulations for age restricted housing, 70%, (eéggal0 units), would need to be age
restricted. Of that 70%, 80% have to be 55 androld@s is in accordance with the
Fair Housing Act, as it governs senior living commties.

In response to the Chairman’s questions, the Piarlagfied further, saying that the
Commission is not creating a 100% age restrict@dneonity. It is creating two
communities, (a senior living community, which emgasses 70% of the entire
development), and another community (which is yet @estricted) that encompasses
30% of the development. Each community must havevin homeowner’s
association. There could be a “master associafanthe entire development, to
manage “common” elements such as water, sewelgraehds maintenance.

Mrs. Willis asks why the number was set at 70%? The Plandieated that it was a
number suggested by Mr. Katz.

Mr. Katz said that there was no magic to this number.dirs® to him a
comfortable compromise going in. Mrs. Willis askekly he didn’t make it 100% age
restricted. Mr. Katz said that he wanted to fingasonable number which would not
discourage acceptance by the applicant. Dr. GelfamahMr. McChesney both
supported the numbers Mr. Katz had proposed.

Mr. McChesney said that the Commission has been talking abdotdzble housing

for all kinds of people, and 30% non age restricta provide that. He felt they
should keep the 70%-30% ratio.

14



Dr. Autuori noted that you could wind up with 30ptus 20% of the 70% under 55.
Theoretically, that was true, the Planner said noted that the 20% could also all be
55 and older. She again stated that, in order iataia your status as an age
restricted community, you must have a minimum cf88f your homeowners in the
age restricted portion as 55 and older. Dr. Autsif pursued the point of trying to
predict what breakdown would actually get you tB&s3otal of non age restricted
housing.

Mr. Katz said there is good reason to believe that therfab would actually be 55
and older. People who buy into age restricted conites, he said, generally are
older people who want to live in the age restrictetling.

The Chairman summed up, noting that the section would be fir@sented.

Section O. Garbage Containefg:ormerly Section N]

This section was also left as presented.

Section P. Application Requirements for DesignaterkEligible for Development
Under the HOD ProvisionslFormerly Section O]

The Planner said that this section resembles the PRD. Theagmlwould come in
saying that they want an HOD development on aqaai property. It would be up
to the Commission to determine whether or notappropriate, she said.

Also, the fee has been increased to $25/unit. fikeahange in the proposal from
how it was presented by the applicant is the aalditif the language under Density,
which states that the density should be determim@dcordance with land based
criteria found in paragraph Q.

The Chairman said they would be getting back tostation on Density.

Section P was left as presented.

Section Q. Application Procedure for HOD Site PAaproval.
[Formerly Section P]

The Chairman read this part of the regulation, giving the apgtit's wording, as
amended by the Planner in accordance with the remrdations of the Commission.
She read each of the six criteria added by the Gesiom, suggested during the
public hearing, to add the “criteria for developmehsensitive lands” from the
existing CDD regulation.

Mrs. Willis asked that vernal pools be added to #1. That stiggevas
incorporated.

15



Mr. Katz felt that slopes over 20% in grade, (as oppos¢dea@urrent 25%), should
be protected.

Mr. McChesneyrecalled a case where the Commission tried todiice a lesser
slope and lost. He felt that, with regard to tipplacation, there had been no
discussion of anything other than the 25% slopd,this was no time to introduce a
concept that had not been discussed, he said.

Mr. Katz said that the applicant’'s own engineer from TighBond introduced
categories of “0-15%,” “15%-20%,” and “Greaterrit20%” on maps submitted
with the application. They don’t say anything ab2b®o, he said.

Mr. McChesney then reversed his position, saying that this igartant.

Mr. Fossi said that he is “almost positive” that in Eurekaresentation, they said
that they wouldn’t develop anything over 20%.

Mr. Katz moved to change the % of slope in #4 from 25 to\M¥0 McChesney
seconded the motion. The motion passed 7-1.

Mr. Katz then suggested different wording for the beginmhthe amended draft in
order to be consistent with Section P., as follows:

FOLLOWING THE COMMISSION’S DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBLITY FOR
THE PARCEL....

The Chairman continued, reading #5, in which the Planner natedisspelling.

With #6, the word “enhancement” was questionedhiegyGhairman. The Planner said
that both #'s 5 and 6 are taken directly out oft®ac410 in the CDD regulations.
She said that she was following the recommendatidhe Commission when it
suggested applying the criteria for the protectibeensitive lands from the CDD.

It was decided to strike the word ENHANCEMENT frdooth #5 and #6.

Dr. Autuori said he wanted to change his vote on #4 to approve

The Planner noted for the record that she did add the requergrfor a public
hearing to the site plan application.

Section R. Requirements for Housing OpportunitytlnjFormerly Section Q]

The Chairman noted that the language for this section is asgmed, with no
proposed changes.

This concluded the discussion of the various sestad the regulation, with the
exception of Section E., Lot Density, which the @man asked the Commission to

16



consider with the help of the map presented byPlaaner. The Chairman noted that
the Planner had some suggestions as to how the @&siomcould arrive at a density.

The Plannerasked the Commission to take the information froerecord that was
presented by the applicant, (as much as possd#id)supplement that with the
thoughts and opinions of the Commission. She desdrihe large maps, detailing
exactly what is proposed, and where. She notddhbdirst map details the total
number of units proposed, including the numbepuwirthouses and apartments, and
how they are laid out on the site. The second rmaipa same layout, but identifies
the Saugatuck watershed lands. She said it isfisigni to note the number of units
and that all of the apartments are proposed folathe in the watershed area. On the
third map, a schematic, each of the developmemnts baen identified by a number of
units and a number of acres, she said. In elinmigahe watershed areas, there are
35.22 acres and 7.25 acres at the center of thersithe non-watershed area.

The Planner noted a discrepancy between the nuofilbgits shown around the
Recreation Center on the watershed map, (30),Fdumber actually proposed for
that area, (16). However, there are actually 16&ustiown around the Recreation
Center, outside the watershed area on the map€lis the watershed area).

The large development area on the western sideegdroperty consists of three
bedroom townhouses. There are no apartment typg efficiencies, etc. One way to
come up with a density and a mix of units, she,saidht be to take some of the
multi-family apartment-style structures and pldoent in amongst the townhouses.

There is a certain area on the 35 acre portiohetievelopment area that is within
the watershed, she noted. If that is excluded,would need to subtract that amount
of acreage.

Regarding the Phase Il Sewer District proposedhbwYater Pollution Control
Authority, it is important to see how that distra@mpares to the non watershed area,
the Planner said. They seem to coincide, she saithe Commission can justifiably
say that the development should be outside of titenshed and within the Phase Il
sewer area.

One other point the Planner made is that the ladgssity in the existing zoning
regulations is the MFDD zone, which allows 6 umitshe acre, (8 units with
affordable). One way to come up with a density wiche to take that area which the
applicant has proposed as appropriate for developrard calculate how many units
would fit in that 35.22 and 7.25 acres, at 8 utttthe acre.

She also noted that, while the applicant has ordggnted a conceptual plan, it does
appear that they have avoided the 20% slopes. ®z #ebated that, saying that, by
his count, 56 units are in 20% slope. The Plangezea there is some overlap, but
noted that 200 units are not in the slope. Thegudised this at some length.

17



The Chairman asked the Commission for a density number.

Dr. Autuori asked if this would be a good time to review tkagity proposal of the
interveners. Discussion continued. The Chairm&edthe Planner to locate the
letter in the record from ROSA (Ridgefield Open &paAssociation), with the
discussion on density.

Dr. Autuori said he is not ready to support anything thatlwvessubtracting, which
“makes land disappear.” He said that, based on thea€Commission has said, they
want to cluster the units on land that is not emvinentally sensitive. That's a
philosophy, he said. But, he wanted to calculaderasity number based on 1.4 units
per gross acre, and wondered how many dwelling whnit would provide. (This was
based on the 14 dwelling units per gross acre @i&hbury Rd., and “knocking it
down by a factor or ten,” he said.) The result glted in this way turned out to be
214-215 units. Looking at the environmental caasts, (the wetlands, the water
bodies, the slopes), the land coverage, the mawefling units, etc., this number
may be something that would fit the applicant’'serahconcept, he thought. Dr.
Autuori said he is simply parsing out a number dose the Commission “has to start
someplace.”

The Chairman said she thought that the number was low.

Mr. Fossi said he agreed more with Dr. Gelfman’s propos& ohits per acre. The
reality, he felt, was that the builder would notdide to get that number of units in
reality, given the watershed, setbacks from wesangper review area, steep slopes,
vernal pools, setbacks from the road, etc. Howetherjudge might be off put by a
low number. He suggested restricting to 2 units,goee, because he doesn’t believe
the builder can actually accomplish that.

Dr. Autuori disagreed, saying that the Commission is justegtotg, and not
prohibiting development in these areas. “If we @@hibiting, then we are
subtracting,” he said, which he would not support.

The Chairman noted that the Planner located the Sept. 4, 2805t from ROSA’s
Eric Kristoffersen. She read from the letter, whatetailed ROSA’s
recommendations, most with densities amountindtmtone unit per two acres in
various “Alternate” proposals, some with a mix oforate and residential
development.

Mr. Katz said that ROSA'’s plan definitely protects the saénd health of the

public, but he doesn't think it could be defended@aourt. We don’t have anything in
the record that suggests that that density protbetsafety and health, he said. What
is in the record is a letter from the Departmentie&lth, which says that the
proposed density in a watershed area is unacceptaphny measuring standard. The
DOH letter indicates that building in a watershegbas not a good idea, but, if the
applicant chooses to do so, one unit per two asnexommended.

18



Mr. Katz felt that the Commission had agreed to try to in@tionale for a specific
density outside the watershed areas, which woldgvat to present to the applicant

a due diligence overview of a regulation that thegposed, modified in a responsible
way. He felt that 87 units would not be seen asspansible revamping of their
regulation, and he did not think it would “fly.” Heould not support it.

The Chairman said that the Planner has worked with all the rens\jband came up
with a density of 1.9 per acre.

The Planner gave the rationale for her determination. She g&t going back to the
third map, you can see that the 35.22 plus 7.2&saotals approximately 42 acres.

Of these 42 acres, which the applicants are pragas being the most suitable for
development on the western portion of the sitegréign lies within the Saugatuck
watershed. This portion appears to be about 6aarés, she said. If one subtracts that
acreage from the 42.4 acres, it totals about 3&&saThe maximum density allowed
in the MFDD is 8 units per acre. If you multiply.d@imes 8, you get 291, she said,
and 291 works out to 1.9 per acre.

This would be one way to defend this number asitagimum, she said. Dr. Gelfman
said that it is close to his recommendation of @suymer acre.

The Chairman said that the Planner had done some very intagegtork overlaying
what the applicant had provided, given what's i plublic record, and she felt that
this was a reasonable way of coming up with a §ipaensity.

Mr. Katz supported the Planner’'s number, saying that, étbat density were used
in the non watershed area, it would not createepugnant” development.

The Planneragain stressed the need to provide a mix of hgusiserve the needs
of the community. She said that the applicant lagprovided for anything but
townhouses on the western portion. If the 5 anddidiom townhouse footprint was
used to create a multi-family building instead, yeauld increase the density on the
same footprint area, and you could have garagesrnedth, she said.

Dr. Autuori noted that the DOH did not say that you can’tduil a watershed area,;
it said that you can’t run sewer lines througliiy effluent from these buildings the
Planner is talking about would have to flow awagnirthe watershed, he said.

Mr. Katz made a motion, seconded by Mr.Fossi to use thenBt&s density of 1.9
per gross acre.

Mrs. Willis and Dr. Autuori thought the number was too high.

19



The Chairman clarified that the Commission was not voting oe tagulation at that
meeting, but merely voting on individual sectiottsmake sure that the regulation
will represent the consensus of the Commission.

Discussion continued, with the Commission membepsessing some divergent
viewpoints.

Mr. Walsh said that what the Commission needs to look ‘aemsonable changes”
to the application in order to protect the heatfety and welfare of the community.
“We have the evidence in the record which giveamuspportunity to make such
reasonable modifications as we deem necessaryegusad ...” the public health
and safety, he said. He agrees that 1.9 per atwe sigh, but he doubts that
supportable, additional changes could be madeetapplication. He added that the
1.9 might not completely protect the public headthfety and welfare, but, it will pull
everything out of the watershed, which is the nsagnificant threat to the public that
a court would be willing to consider under 8-30g.

Dr. Autuori asked Mr. Walsh how he came up with his origingjgestion of 1.75.

Mr. Walsh said that he took everything out of the watersdred, and calculated the
slopes, as best as he could, and came up withubi#per acre. He said he did not
think the Commission should use his number, bectngsend result is that the land

will dictate, and it will continue to restrict thdevelopment. Using the number 1.9,

he thought, was the more reasonable approach.

Mr. Katz said that, if this development laid out as proplose the map, Mr. Walsh'’s
1.75 units per acre would probably come into playweay. Mr. Katz felt that, using
his calculations of 180 units in the watershed 2®@dn slopes of 20% or greater, this
would bring the number of units down to 273 if Hgplicant built as proposed. They
won't get their 291, he said.

Discussion continued after Mrs. Willis suggesteat the applicant may try to prove
that the Commission’s calculations are wrong.

The motion was made to go with the Planner’s nurobdr9 units per acre, (by Mr.
Katz and seconded by Mr. Fossi. The motion pa§s&dwith Mrs. Willis and Dr.
GAutuori opposed.

The Chairman noted that the only issue still unresolved wasnin@ber of
bedrooms, under Section F.

Mr. McChesney suggested the following wording: there should Ineaof
efficiency, 1, 2, and 3 bedroom units. Mr. Katzesgt. He said that the developers
will see when they begin what they will be ableyat, and he thinks that stating the
Commission’s desire for a mix of housing to belikst approach.

20



Dr. Gelfman suggested leaving the wording as is, allowingmote than 30%
of the units to be 3-bedroom units.

The Chairman said that the prior discussion had suggested oot than 20%.

Mr. McChesney said that the applicants will make the decisidme Tegulation will
force them into building 1 and 2 bedroom unitswadl, he said, adding that the land
is going to dictate how many units they will beeatw build. He felt that the
developers may find that, with all the restrictigmiaced on them, they may not be
able to build many 3 bedroom units, and there naiybe a huge market for them
anyway. He supported the 30% figure.

Dr. Gelfman made a motion to restrict 3 bedroom units to 30%$s. The motion
was seconded by Mr. Fossi.

Mr. Katz asked the maker of the motion and the secondéeyfcould be
comfortable with 25%.

The maker and the seconder of the motion agreathend the motion to be 25%.
The motion passed unanimously.

There was discussion as to whether or not the Cemam would like to have the
attorneys present at the next meeting. Mr. Katz eygmsed to this. The Planner said
that the date by which the Commission must votéhanis Nov. 20, 2007. She noted
all the public hearings in the month of Novembed aaid that the following week
was the only date where there would be time formmegul discussion. Her concern
is that the Commission get clear on what neede tdme regarding the application
for the amendment to the POCD, and the applicdtiothe zone change. Those two
issues have not been adequately dealt with. Coenséd be here to make sure that
those very important pieces are handled correslig,said. The Commission decided
to have the attorneys present.

There were no final votes taken on this item. Tleenmission voted on revisions to
individual sentences and paragraphs in the draftalfinal vote will not be taken
until the revised draft is prepared.

. #2007-110-VDC Village District Application under Sec. 8.3 fdgsage on building
located a#04 Main Streetin the CBD zone. Owner: Urstadt Biddle Properties.
Appl.: Keller Williams Realty, Steve Sco85-days to received report ends
11/6/2007. 10/2/2007 received and referred to VDC. For action. (TENTATIVE)

This item was tabled pending report from the Viddgistrict Consultant.

21



NEW ITEMS

3. #2007-127-SPSpecial Permit application under Section 9.2 agired by Section
3.4 of the Ridgefield Zoning Regulations to constran accessory structure in the
front yard on property located 219 Nod Roadin the RAA zone. Owner:
Christopher Gaydos. Appl.: Christopher and Noradaay Auth. Agent: Luigi
DiMeglio. 65 days to commence public hearing ends 12/27/2007. For receipt,
schedule walk and public hearing.

Mrs. Willis motioned, seconded by Dr. Autuori, to acknowledepeipt of the
application, to schedule a site walk for 10/28@7d to schedule a public hearing for
11/13/07, as suggested by the Chairman. The mpassed, 8-0.

4. #2007-128-REV(SP)Revision to Special Permit under Section 9.2.Aof the
Ridgefield Zoning Regulations to permit upgradethmexisting site, building facade
and wall signage on property located?30 Branchville Road(Ancona’s Market and
Wines/Liquors) in the B-1 zone. Owners: Joseph Bofya and John C. Ancona.
Appl./Auth. Agent: DCA Architects/Planners, LL65-day action period ends
12/27/2007. For receipt and schedule walk

Mrs. Willis motioned, seconded by Mr. Fossi, to acknowledgeipt of the
application and to schedule a site walk for 10/284% suggested by the Chairman.
The motion passed, 8-0.

5. #2007-129-SP-SRSpecial Permit under Section 9.2 as required byi@ec.5 for
excavation to reconstruct driveway on property fedat36 Saw Mill Hill Road in
the RAA zone. Owner: Robert Rosseau. Appl./Authertg Frank Fowler, 1lI, PE,
LS. 65-days to commence public hearing ends 12/27/2007. For receipt, schedule walk
and public hearing.

Planner Brosiuscommented that she and Zoning Enforcement Officeindrd
Baldelli have serious concerns about erosion cbdtrong the reconstruction
process, (because of the slopes), and feel thairtpect warrants the expertise of a
professional consultant. A decision will be maderathe site walk.

Dr. Autuori motioned, seconded by Mrs. Willis, to acknowledgeeipt of the
application and to schedule a site walk for 10/Z84% suggested by the Chairman.
The motion passed, 8-0.

6. #2007-130-SP-VDCSpecial Permit under Section 9.2 and Village Dastri
Application under Section 8.3 for reconstructiowl apgrade of existing auto body
shop (Georgetown Autobody) on property locate?7& Catoonah Streetn the
CBD zone. Owner: Ashley Holdings, LLC. Appl.: PakiVenus. Auth. Agent:
Douglas MacMillan65 days to commence public hearing ends 12/27/2007. 35 days
to receive VDC report ends 11/27/2007. For receipt, schedule walk, public hearing
and refer to VDC.

22



Dr. Autuori motioned, seconded by Mrs. Willis, to acknowledgeeipt of the
application, to schedule a site walk for 10/28t@75chedule a public hearing for
12/4/07, and to refer the application to the Viddgistrict Consultant, as suggested
by the Chairman. The motion passed, 8-0.

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION — PERSONNEL
There were no votes and no action was taken dtinmgxecutive Session.

COMMISSION WALKS

The Commission added the following to the Octol&rZD07 schedule for site walks:

= #2007-127-SPSpecial Permi219 Nod RoadGaydos

= #2007-128-REV(SP)Revision to Special Permi20 Branchville Road,Ancona

= #2007-129-SP-SRSpecial Permi86 Saw Mill Hill, Rosseau

= #2007-130-SP-VDCSpecial Permi27R Catoonah StreetAshley Holdings, LLC

The following items were previously scheduled fioe svalk on October 28, 2007:

= #2007-121-SPA-SRSite Plan applicatioid6 Governor Street,76 Governor Street
LLC

=  #2007-123-SPSpecial Permit4 Danbury Road, Webster BankIMF Realty, LLC

REQUESTS FOR BOND RELEASES/REDUCTION
There were no requests for bond release or reductio

CORRESPONDENCE

Chairman Mucchetti pointed out the following correspondence:

- Memorandum from the Planner to the Board of Selentme the fees requested for
waiver for the “Shop Local” banner Special Pernpipléecations.

- Memorandum from the Planner and attached letten fsersons requesting a change
in the zoning regulations to permit a Farmer’'s Mgark

« Outline of items for a Lighting Ordinance, prepabsdMr. Autuori for the Board of
Selectmen. Mr. Autuori noted that the BoS is cutityeresearching the proposal to
regulate lighting town-wide, and has not made amyimmitment to proceed at this
point.

- Draft Request for Proposal for the Ridgefield Ceteidy, prepared by the Planner.
This item will appear on the 10/30/07 Special Magtchedule, for discussion.

MINUTES
Mr. Katz motioned, seconded by Mrs. Willis, to approvertiautes of October 9, 2007.

Chairman Mucchetti offered some minor correctioiie motion passed, 8-0, with the
corrections.

23



Hearing no further discussion, the Chairman adjediihe meeting at 10:32 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Caponetti
Recording Secretary

24



